
 
 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a modification of policies or procedures 
to participate in a program, service, or activity of Monroe County, should contact Monroe County Title VI Coordinator 
Angie Purdie, (812)349-2550, apurdie@co.monroe.in.us, as soon as possible but no later than forty-eight (48) hours 
before the scheduled event.  
 
Individuals requiring special language services should, if possible, contact the Monroe County Government Title VI 
Coordinator at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the date on which the services will be needed.  
 
The meeting is open to the public. 

MONROE COUNTY STORMWATER MANAGEMENT BOARD 
Wednesday April 2, 2025, at 3:30 PM 

County Courthouse Building, 3rd Floor – Nat U Hill Meeting Room 
Hybrid Meeting with Virtual Attendance via Teams 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Public Input for Items not on the Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for March 5, 2025 +* 
4. Stormwater Expenditure Report for February 2025 + 
5. Business 

a. MOU with Lake Monroe Water Fund (Water Monitoring 2025) +* 
6. Staff Reports 

a. Lisa Ridge, Highway Director 
i. Stipp Road Project Update & Construction Cost Updates + 

ii. Southshore Project (in-house) + 
b. Kaylin Burkey – Water Quality Monitoring Report – Year One 

7. Adjournment 
a. Date of Next Meeting: May 7, 2025 

 
+ Attachment Included 
* Action Required to Approve/Deny 

1



   

 

   

 

MONROE COUNTY STORMWATER MANAGEMENT BOARD 
Wednesday March 5, 2025, at 3:30 PM 

County Courthouse Building, 3rd Floor – Nat U Hill Meeting Room 
Hybrid Meeting with Virtual Attendance via Teams 

 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Trohn Enright-Randolph, Lee Jones, Jody Madeira, Julie Thomas 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None  

STAFF: Donna Barbrick (Secretary), Erica Penna (Stormwater Program Manager), Tina Engle 
(Stormwater), Adam Rickert (Stormwater), TSD, Lisa Ridge (Highway) 
OTHERS: CATS TV 

 

1. Call to Order by Lee Jones 

2. Public Input for Items not on the Agenda (none) 

3. Approval of Minutes for January 8, 2025. Motion to approve by Julie Thomas; second by Jody 
Madeira. VOTE: AYE (unanimous). Motion carried.  

4. Stormwater Expenditure Report for January 2025.  

Tina Engle went through the figures and noted major expenditures for the Stipp Road project, pipes, 
and a new Grad-all.  

5. Business 

a. MS4 Delegation for Signatory Authority 

Erica Penna said this was a requirement for IDEM. Motion to approve delegating signatory 
authority to the MS4 Coordinator by Thomas; second by Madeira. VOTE: AYE (unanimous). 
There was a discussion of adding Trohn Enright-Randolph to the signature line; Penna said she 
could make that correction.  

6. Staff Reports 

a. Adam Rickert – 2024 MS4 Annual Report Presentation 

Adam Rickert went through 2024 Annual Report Highlights. He displayed a map of watersheds 
within Monroe County. He displayed the six minimum control measures for the county’s 
stormwater permit. He talked about public education, outreach events, and public participation 
efforts. He talked about illicit discharge reporting form and dashboard. He said he worked with 
Irena Valentine-Bolin on an ArcGIS Survey 123 form. He said we now have an in-house method of 
receiving reports. He noted outfall screenings conducted in 2024. He said all this information is 
available online through the Hoosier River Watch website. He talked about construction site 
stormwater run-off control and recent changes with the new stormwater ordinance. He gave 
figures on construction sites and grading permits. He talked about post-construction runoff control 
and stormwater infrastructure for BMPs. He spoke about municipal operations pollution prevention 

2



   

 

   

 

and good housekeeping, including training staff on stormwater permits. Thomas asked if the 
number of active sites was comparable to previous years. Penna said yes, pretty much. She said 
the number of permits will increase in 2025 since we are issuing our own permits.  

Trohn spoke about a letter that was put together regarding a stormwater statehouse bill seemed to 
be moving forward. Jones said she was pleased with how the letter turned out. She said I was 
pleased to see the workshop for the Homeowners Associations.  

Lisa Ridge spoke. She said I wanted to give an update on the Fieldstone Dam. She said we have the 
software finally working and the system running and Erica is now able to open/close the gate 
remotely instead of sending someone physically out there before every storm. She said we 
replaced some modems out there. She said we need to have the solar panel turned to face the right 
direction. She said we may look into having the system run on electric rather than solar. She said I 
think we are on the right path. She said Erica has worked with the software provider to learn about 
the settings.  

Ridge said on the Stipp Road project, we received an easement from the Army Corps and we are 
replacing culverts at this time. She said we have bids out for paving the remainder of Stipp Road 
after the project is complete.  

7. Adjournment 

a. Date of Next Meeting: April 2, 2025 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 3:52PM 

 

Approved: 

Signed: 

 

 

 
  

President Secretary   

 

 

3



Appropriation Line Item  Yr. Beginning Appr. Encumbrances Adjust./Transfers Additionals Expenditures Total Appr. % Unexpended

20s Supplies

20001 Office Supplies $1,500.00 $217.85 $1,500.00 68%

21170 Field Crew Supplies $5,000.00 $873.59 $5,000.00 71%

23411 Fleet Maintenance $80,000.00 $4,247.12 $80,000.00 91%

23920 Testing/Sampling Equipment $3,500.00 $148.11 $3,500.00 96%

23940 Seed/Mulch/Compost/Planting $20,000.00 $840.00 $20,000.00 96%

23960 Backfill/Pavement Repair Mater $130,000.00 $21,413.17 $130,000.00 83%

30s Other Services and Charges

30061 On Call Contractors $75,000.00 $2,649.39 $75,000.00 94%

30321 General Engineering Services $120,000.00 ($1,711.00) $1,375.00 $118,289.00 99%

30330 Public Education and Paricipation $38,000.00 $85.76 $38,000.00 100%

30500 Printing and Advertising $3,000.00 $547.15 $3,000.00 80%

30700 Gas, Oil & Lube $100,000.00 $5,434.12 $100,000.00 88%

30801 Postage & Freight $2,300.00 $21.44 $2,300.00 99%

33008 Other Insurance (Non-health) $70,000.00 $1,711.00 $71,711.00 $71,711.00 0%

35003 Reprographics $500.00 $15.02 $500.00 97%

39288 Stipp Rd/Moores Ck #16 & #4 SW $1,500,000.00 $2,887.61 $1,500,000.00 99%

40s Capital Outlays

40001 Equipment $523,500.00 $208.02 $523,500.00 0%

Check Date Appropriation Line Item Amount

03-Feb-25

23960 Backfill/Pavement Repair Mater $143.10

35003 Reprographics $6.27

06-Feb-25

20001 Offices Supplies $74.07

20001 Offices Supplies $23.78

21170 Field Crew Supplies $543.69

23920 Testing/Sampling Equipment $8.80

23960 Backfill/Pavement Repair Mater $892.65

23960 Backfill/Pavement Repair Mater $3,006.50

30061 On Call Construction Services $270.00

30321 Professional Fees $247.50

30500 Printing & Advertising $547.15

39288 Stipp Rd/Moores Ck #16 & #4 SW $2,687.61

40001 Equipment $208.02

13-Feb-25

21170 Field Crew Supplies $329.90

20-Feb-25

20001 Offices Supplies $120.00

23920 Testing/Sampling Equipment $139.31

23940 Seed/Mulch/Compost/Plantings $840.00

23960 Backfill/Pavement Repair Mater $10,761.00

23960 Backfill/Pavement Repair Mater $111.72

30061 On Call Construction Services $388.13

30330 Public Edu & Participation $50.00

30801 Postage & Freight $21.44

35003 Reprographics $8.75

27-Feb-25

23411 Fleet Maintenance Supplies $174.20

23411 Fleet Maintenance Supplies $4,072.92

23960 Backfill/Pavement Repair Mater $6,240.50

23960 Backfill/Pavement Repair Mater $257.70

30061 On Call Construction Services $1,991.26

30321 Professional Fees $1,127.50

30330 Public Edu & Participation $35.76

30700 Gas, Oil & Lube $5,434.12

33008 Other Insurance (non-health) $71,711.00

Menards drinks for Contractor's workshop, 1/22/25 at Ivy Tec

Monroe County Highway SW Fuel Usage, January 2025

$2,278.56

$0.00

$484.98

Monroe County Highway SW January 2025 vehicle maintainance & repair

IMI Irving Materials Inc flowable fill, class A Stone, Bridge crew

Industrial Service & Supply Inc DJ mill hose & clamp to clean trucks & sweeper

120 bales of straw

USI Insurance Services LLC auto, umbrella, property, fire, workmen's comp insurance

Security Pro 24/7 Inc

Monroe County Master Gardner

Adam Rickert

Toshiba Business Solutions

2 traffic officers

2025 Gardem Fair

certified mail

color copies 

Rogers Group Inc Stone, Rip Rap

Security Pro 24/7 Inc 10 traffic officers

Christopher B Burke Charlestowne-Westbrook, Dozer Rentals Self-Storage

Kleindorfers Hardware LLC

Stone, Rip Rap

Christopher B Burke

Kleindorfers Hardware LLC

Rogers Group Inc

IMI Irving Materials Inc

Vendor

Rogers Group Inc

Martin Inc

Toshiba Business Solutions

Martin Inc cal gas 34 liter, fall-7008 blx

sample bottles

IMI Irving Materials Inc

$107,638.78

$70,580.61

$116,914.00

$37,914.24

$2,391.85

$88,084.94

$1,488,245.84

$291.98

pens, hooks

Notes

Business cards, Erica, Greg & Mason

Forestry Suppliers Inc

Rogers Group Inc

flow regulator, winch, tripod brackets

40' rope

Stone, Rip Rap

Riprap

2 traffic officers

Charlestowne-Westbrook,Btown Co Club, Dozer Rentals Storage

flowable fill, class A Stone, Bridge crew

Riprap

work boots, inspector & specialist

Rainbow Printing, LLC

Security Pro 24/7 Inc

John Deere Financial

$19,160.00

Engraving & Stamp Center Inc

Stormwater Fund 1197 Appropriation Balance as of February 28, 2025
Appr. Balance

$1,016.32

$73,163.30

$3,526.43

$3,351.89

First Financial Bank Advertising, truck driver & stormwater tech

Lockmueller Group, Inc Stipp Rd Task #2

Stormwater Fund 1197 February 2025 Expenditures by Date

color copies 

name plate & name tags

Amazon Capital Services

4



 

642 N. Madison Street     Bloomington, IN 47404    (812) 213-0411    lakemonroewaterfund.org 
 

 

 

 

 

March 13, 2025 

Monroe County Stormwater Management Board 
c/o Erica Penna, epenna@co.monroe.in.us 
 

Dear Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Madeira, Commissioner Thomas, and Mr. Enright-
Randolph,  

Thank you for your past support of the water fund for our collaborative water monitoring 
efforts in the Lake Monroe watershed. The stormwater management board has graciously 
supported these efforts over the past three years in the amount of $3,500 each year.  

I respectfully request your continued support in the amount of $3,500 for this year’s 
monitoring activities. If approved, we plan to use the funding once again to defray the costs 
of operating a stream flow gauge on the S. Fork of Salt Creek. Please see the following pages 
for a letter of support from Friends of Lake Monroe and a short newsletter article about the 
gauge.  

The US Geological Survey maintains and operates the gauge and covers half of the $14,000 
annual costs. The water fund has committed to securing the remaining $7,000 each year. To 
date we have received a pledge from Duke Energy to provide $1,000, and your assistance will 
enable the water fund to focus on raising the additional $2,500 needed for this important 
effort.  

Thank you for your consideration. I  would be happy to speak with you about this project and 
about our other initiatives in the watershed to reduce pollution from faulty septic systems, 
fertilizer runoff, and sediment.  

 
Sincerely, 

 
Michelle M. Cohen, MSES 
Executive Director 
 

5

mailto:epenna@co.monroe.in.us


 
 
 

PO Box 3145 
Bloomington, IN 47402 

 
friendsoflakemonroe@gmail.com 

friendsoflakemonroe.org 

To:   Michelle Cohen, Lake Monroe Water Fund 
Julie Thomas, Monroe County Stormwater Management Board 
Katherine Zaiger, City of Bloomington Utilities 

 
From:  Sherry Mitchell-Bruker, Friends of Lake Monroe 

Subject:  Need for Kurtz Gage 

Date:  February 4, 2025 

We are writing to encourage you to continue your financial support of the USGS flow gage at Kurtz, 
South Fork of Salt Creek. 

Streamflow data from the tributaries feeding Lake Monroe is needed for calculating a water budget and 
nutrient and sediment loads to Lake Monroe. Nutrients and sediment load calculations help to locate 
problem areas and quantify pollution problems.  There are three main tributaries that enter Lake 
Monroe - North Fork Salt Creek, Middle Fork Salt Creek, and South Fork Salt Creek.  Middle Fork is much 
smaller than the other two and therefore not as significant in terms of inflow to the lake.  There has 
been a flow monitoring station in place on North Fork Salt Creek for many years but because weather 
patterns and streamflow magnitude vary substantially between the areas North and South of Lake 
Monroe, North Fork streamflow is not representative of the natural variation of stream flow in the 
South Fork.   

Long term continuous flow data allows us to conduct rigorous frequency characterization. Frequency 
characterization puts the data from any one year in perspective.  As an example, if sediment or nutrient 
loads are high in an unusually wet period (say a 1-in-100-year rainfall event) it means something very 
different than if loads are high in a more common 1-in-2-year rainfall event.  It takes many years of data 
to be able to adequately characterize flows in terms of frequency.   

Friends of Lake Monroe will continue to analyze stream flow data periodically, especially in combination 
with water quality monitoring being conducted by City of Bloomington Utilities in South Fork Salt Creek 
and future monitoring by Friends of Lake Monroe.  These data are used to feed sediment and nutrient 
load models and to determine how the model results represent typical flow frequencies.  Our plan is to 
repeat water quality monitoring conducted in 2020-2021 and use data from CBU and the Kurtz site to 
calculate sediment and nutrient loads.  Having continuous flow data in both North Fork and South Fork 
over many years would be used to place our model results in the context of weather conditions and flow 
frequency. 

We appreciate the financial support that the City of Bloomington and Monroe County have contributed 
in the past to allow the installation and continued operation of the Kurtz gaging station and encourage 
the Lake Monroe Water Fund to continue to facilitate the financing of this important gaging station. 

6



Article from the Lake Monroe Water Fund’s September 2024 newsletter:  

 

Measuring Stream Flow into Lake Monroe  

For the last five years the Lake Monroe Water Fund has worked with partners to finance 
a stream gauge that continuously measures water flow in the South Fork Salt Creek in 
Jackson County upstream of Lake Monroe.   

The gauge data is publicly available here.  

 

Continuous monitoring of  the volume of water that flows into the lake, specifically 
during storm events, is crucial and allows for year-to-year data comparison. It also 
enables partners to sample for pollutants during periods of high flow. This can 
help identify specific strategies that we should take to reduce run-off of sediment and 
‘nutrients’ from fertilizers, farm chemicals, animal waste and septic waste. 
 
The implementation of the project is a collaborative effort. The annual cost to operate 
the gauge is  $14,000. The U.S. Geological Survey covers half of the cost, with the Water 
Fund responsible for raising the remaining  $7,000. The Water Fund has been able to 
fulfill our share this year thanks to generous support from the Monroe County 
Stormwater Board, The Nature Conservancy, and your donations.  

7

https://waterdata.usgs.gov/monitoring-location/03371600/#parameterCode=00065&period=P365D&showMedian=false


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
between the 

Monroe County Stormwater Management Board (MCSWMB) 
and the 

Lake Monroe Water Fund (LMWF) 
 
The Parties to this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) agree to the following: 
 
Article 1: Purpose and Scope 
 
The purpose of this MOU is to support water monitoring efforts in the Lake Monroe watershed through 
the fiscal year 2025. 
 
Article 2: Conditions and Arrangements 
 
The MCSMB will provide the LMWF with $3,500 to be spent for water monitoring activities in the Lake 
Monroe watershed. Water monitoring efforts funded by this MOU must be conducted to align with the 
goals and objectives of the approved Lake Monroe Watershed Management Plan, and watershed 
implementation efforts for monitoring non-point source pollution entering Lake Monroe. The LMWF 
shall seek approval from the Stormwater Program Manager (MS4 Coordinator) prior to distributing 
funds to other local groups. The MCSWMB may request periodic updates from the LMWF on projects 
being funded. 
 
Article 3: Timeframe 
 
If any of this funding remains unused at the end of the 2025 fiscal year, it will be returned to the 
MCSWMB. A request for an extension must be made at least 90 days prior to the end of the 2025 fiscal 
year. 
 
Article 4: Future Cooperation 
 
The LMWF will continue to work to support the goals of the MCSWMB and the County’s Stormwater 
Program by encouraging responsible management of Lake Monroe’s watershed. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________  
Monroe County Stormwater    Lake Monroe Water Fund, 
Management Board, member    representative 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Date       Date 

8



BUDGET 1197.39288.0000 STIPP ROAD/MOORES CREEK $1,500,000.00

Vendor/Contractor Project Activity Notes

Milestone Moores Creek Final payment $255,056.00
Lochmueller Moores Creek Construction Inspection $11,754.16 Original Contract Approved 10/23/2023
Total for Completion of Moores Creek $266,810.16

Balance in Appropriation as of 3/20/25 $1,233,189.84

E&B Paving Stipp Road Contractor $1,342,600.00 Contract Approved December 2024
Duke Utility Agreement Stipp Road Utility Relocations $122,637.24 Contract Approval pending - 3/27/2025
Lochmueller Group Task #2 Stipp Road Staking for Duke Energy $8,800.00 Contract Arrpoval pending - 03/27/2025
Bluestone Tree Stipp Road Tree Removal $96,577.00 Contract Approval pending - 3/27/2025
Lochmueller Stipp Road Contruction Inspection $187,624.61 (left on contract after Phase I, Moores Creek)
Estimate for Completion $1,758,238.85

Additional Appropriation $525,049.01 (Round up to $525,000.00)

Cash Balance in 1197 as of 3/20/25 $3,284,258.85

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AB6EC0B-18C3-4C67-9E40-A25C52CF10AF

18



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AB6EC0B-18C3-4C67-9E40-A25C52CF10AF

3/20/2025

19



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AB6EC0B-18C3-4C67-9E40-A25C52CF10AF

20



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AB6EC0B-18C3-4C67-9E40-A25C52CF10AF

21



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AB6EC0B-18C3-4C67-9E40-A25C52CF10AF

22



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AB6EC0B-18C3-4C67-9E40-A25C52CF10AF

23



24



25



26



27



28


	1 20250402 SWMB Agenda
	2 20250305 SWMB Minutes DRAFT
	3 2025_02 SW Expenditures
	4 20250313 Letter of Request to MC Stormwater Management Board from LMWF
	2025 03 Letter of Request to MC Stormwater Management Board from LMWF.pdf
	March 13, 2025
	Monroe County Stormwater Management Board
	c/o Erica Penna, epenna@co.monroe.in.us
	Dear Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Madeira, Commissioner Thomas, and Mr. Enright-Randolph,
	Thank you for your past support of the water fund for our collaborative water monitoring efforts in the Lake Monroe watershed. The stormwater management board has graciously supported these efforts over the past three years in the amount of $3,500 eac...
	I respectfully request your continued support in the amount of $3,500 for this year’s monitoring activities. If approved, we plan to use the funding once again to defray the costs of operating a stream flow gauge on the S. Fork of Salt Creek. Please s...
	The US Geological Survey maintains and operates the gauge and covers half of the $14,000 annual costs. The water fund has committed to securing the remaining $7,000 each year. To date we have received a pledge from Duke Energy to provide $1,000, and y...
	Thank you for your consideration. I  would be happy to speak with you about this project and about our other initiatives in the watershed to reduce pollution from faulty septic systems, fertilizer runoff, and sediment.
	Sincerely,
	Michelle M. Cohen, MSES
	Executive Director

	Need for Kurtz Gage Letter from Friends of Lake Monroe 2025 02
	2024 09 LMWF article on stream gauge

	4a MOU with LMWF 2025 Water Monitoring
	5 Stipp Road Cost Estimate v3
	6 E&B Paving;Stipp Rd Reconstruction;$1,342,600
	7 BlueStone Contract - Stipp Rd
	8 Lochmueller Group Task #2



